
From: Cool, Richard
To: Dale Jones
Cc: Johnson, Patrick
Subject: Notice of Availability of EPA Certified Response-to-Comments Letter: EPA Docket No. 10-2022-0031
Date: Wednesday, March 23, 2022 6:48:16 PM
Attachments: City of Pelican Signed Jones RTC Ltr 03.10.2022.pdf

4 - Draft CAFO - City of Pelican - 12.7.2021.docx
4 - Fully Executed Pelican AK WWTF AOC July 2021.pdf

E-MAIL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
 
Hello Mr. Jones:
 
The purpose of this email is to notify you that EPA mailed a certified letter (Response-to-
Comments or RTC) to you on Friday, March 11, 2022 via U.S. Postal Service (USPS).  The
USPS tracking system indicates the EPA certified RTC letter was received at the Pelican,
Alaska post office on Tuesday, March 15, 2022 and was then available for your pick-up.
 
The certified RTC letter is provided in response to your comments submitted to the EPA
Regional Hearing Clerk on the Consent Agreement and Proposed Final Order entered into
between EPA and the City of Pelican, Alaska in the EPA administrative enforcement
proceeding, EPA Docket No. 10-2022-0031.
 
For your information, I have included a copy of your certified RTC letter here, including the
two enclosures: the Consent Agreement and Proposed Final Order and the July 2021
Administrative Order on Consent.
 
I would appreciate it if you would reply to this email and confirm its receipt.
 
Thank you for attention to this notice of RTC letter availability at the Pelican post office and
for your reply email confirming receipt of this email.
 
Sincerely,
 
Rick Cool
Surface Water Enforcement Section
U.S. EPA Region 10
1200 Sixth Avenue, Ste. 155, M/S 20-C04
Seattle, WA  98101
 
cool.richard@epa.gov
Phone: (206) 553-6223
Cell:  (206) 321-5396
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:Cool.Richard@epa.gov
mailto:dale84027@gmail.com
mailto:johnson.patrick@epa.gov
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Reply To:  20-C04 
 
CERTIFIED MAIL - RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 
 
Mr. Dale Jones 
General Delivery 
Pelican, Alaska  99832 
 
Re: Response to Comment on Proposed Administrative Consent Agreement and Final Order  


In re: City of Pelican, Alaska, EPA Docket No. CWA-10-2022-0031 
 
Dear Mr. Jones: 
 
We are writing in response to your comments provided to the Regional Hearing Clerk for the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Region 10 by email on January 24, 2022, on the above-
referenced administrative Consent Agreement and Proposed Final Order (CA/FO) entered into between 
EPA and the City of Pelican, Alaska (“City”).  As a preliminary matter, we wish to express our 
appreciation of your participation in the public notice and comment process. 
 
Your comments appear to be generally concerned with potential ongoing harms associated with the 
City’s operation of its wastewater treatment facility.  In particular, you state that you have observed the 
issues raised by Mr. Ray Allard in his public comments on this matter.  Given that you reference the 
matters addressed by Mr. Allard in your comments on this matter, EPA is providing you with 
information that is relevant to Mr. Allard’s comments in addition to information relevant to your 
comments. 
 
In EPA’s consideration of your comments, we first note the distinction between the action on which you 
have submitted a comment, a CA/FO with the sole purpose of identifying the appropriate civil monetary 
penalty to resolve the alleged Clean Water Act (CWA) violations, and a previous action between the 
City and EPA requiring the City to take a series of actions to come into compliance with the CWA.  
That previous action was memorialized in an Administrative Order on Consent (AOC), Docket Number 
CWA-10-2021-0148, effective on July 8, 2021.  The AOC is enclosed for your information.   
 
Mr. Allard’s comments reference the need for repairs to the City’s septic tanks.  Please note that Section 
V of the above-referenced AOC, requires the City to take a series of compliance measures related to the 
septic tanks, including but not limited to, completing all repairs and replacements on the septic tanks to 
address any remaining inoperable isolation valves, repairing and replacing any damaged or degraded 
tank insulation and protective coating and making any other necessary repairs to the tanks, valves and 
other wastewater treatment plant appurtenances.  It is EPA’s position that these compliance measures 
will help ensure that the City’s septic tanks return to compliance with the wastewater treatment facility’s 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit.  
 
EPA contacted the City to request more information related to the portion of Mr. Allard’s comments 
focused on allegations that the City’s actions have “been causing houses in the city to back up and spew 
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untreated sewage on the ground,” that the City “refuse[s] to address the issues that homeowners are 
experiencing,”  that “[t]here are houses with brand new sewer hook ups that don’t work because the 
city’s entire sewer system is broken,” and “that there is an open sewer main manhole down on the beach 
at the end of town filled with sea water for weeks.”   
 
In response to Mr. Allard’s comment that the City’s actions have “been causing houses in the city to 
back up and spew untreated sewage on the ground,” EPA specifically requested that the City provide a 
summary of recent releases of untreated or partially treated sewage from the City’s sanitary sewer 
collection system, including releases to ground, surface waters and sewage back-ups into homes, 
residential dwellings, buildings and any other structures.  These are commonly known as sanitary sewer 
overflows (SSOs).  The City provided two examples of reported SSOs since January 1, 2019, but 
acknowledged the possibility that if an individual customer service line fails, the City may not always be 
notified.  However, the City committed to EPA that it responds to and investigates every reported SSO.   
 
According to the City, an SSO event occurred in May 2021, resulting from snow falling from a roof onto 
a sewer line, causing the line to break.  The City apparently responded to that SSO event and completed 
necessary actions to address the issue within two business days.  The other SSO event reported by the 
City involved a manhole on a beach that will be more fully discussed below.   
 
EPA requested that the City provide a response to Mr. Allard’s comment that the City “refuse[s] to 
address the issues that homeowners are experiencing.”  According to the City, when it receives a public 
complaint related to the sanitary sewer collection system, the City’s public works department is tasked 
with identifying the cause of the problem and, if appropriate, correcting the problem.  The City commits 
to EPA that all public complaints are appropriately investigated.  As an example, the City describes a 
report from a homeowner stating that fumes were backing up into their residence.  In response, the City 
hired a licensed plumbing contractor to evaluate the customer’s service sewer line and the licensed 
contractor apparently concluded that the drainage system of the residence was not properly vented.  
According to the City, the customer was notified of the contractor’s findings.  
 
In response to Mr. Allard’s comment that “[t]here are houses with brand new sewer hook ups that don’t 
work because the city’s entire sewer system is broken,” the City stated to EPA that it has assisted with 
new customer sewer line service hookups and claims that these systems are operational.  The City 
informed EPA that they are not aware of any operational issues associated with these new sewer 
hookups. 
 
Lastly, the City provided EPA with a response to Mr. Allard’s comment that “that there is an open sewer 
main manhole down on the beach at the end of town filled with sea water for weeks.”  The City 
acknowledged to EPA that it discovered that a manhole cover was temporarily dislodged by a log that 
had drifted against the manhole and caused the cover to move.  The log was apparently anchored on the 
“Flats” by a local property owner.  Once the City discovered the problem, it had to wait until tidal 
conditions were appropriate to implement a solution.  The manhole cover was apparently fastened to 
prevent further seawater intrusion and more permanent repairs will occur once the City is able to obtain 
the necessary supplies.  In addition to these permanent repairs, the City intends to notify residents that 
they should not tow logs in close vicinity to the manhole and will turn off relevant pumps during high 
tide events to ensure that the seawater will not reach the City’s sanitary sewer collection system.   
 
Your other comments (e.g., monthly invoicing, etc.) are not within the scope of EPA’s CWA jurisdiction 
and the CWA enforcement action resolved by the CA/FO and are therefore immaterial. 
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EPA has fully considered your material comments and has determined that they do not require any 
modification to the CA/FO.  As stated above, EPA believes that the AOC requiring the City to 
implement a number of compliance measures will ensure that the City will return to compliance with the 
wastewater treatment facility’s NPDES permit.  Additionally, your comments do not directly suggest 
that a modification to the agreed-upon civil penalty within the CA/FO is appropriate.  As stated in 
Paragraph 4.3 of the CA/FO and as required by CWA Section, 309(g)(3), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(3), when 
determining the appropriate civil penalty resolving this matter, EPA has taken into account “the nature, 
circumstances, extent and gravity of the violation, or violations, and, with respect to the violator, ability 
to pay, any prior history of such violations, the degree of culpability, economic benefit or savings (if 
any) resulting from the violation, and such other matters as justice may require.”  EPA has determined 
that the agreed-upon civil penalty adequately considered the required statutory factors relevant to the 
alleged CWA violations and will serve to deter any future CWA violations by the City. 
 
EPA’s Consolidated Rules of Practice at, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, that govern these proceedings require we 
provide you a copy of the proposed CA/FO by certified mail.  40 C.F.R. § 22.45(c)(4).  Within 30 days 
of your receipt of the enclosed proposed CA/FO, you may petition the Regional Administrator for EPA 
Region 10, to have it set aside on the basis that material evidence was not considered.  The contact 
information for the Regional Administrator is: 
 


Michelle Pirzadeh, Acting Regional Administrator 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 10 
1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 155 
Seattle, Washington  98101 
pirzadeh.michelle@epa.gov  


 
Should you decide to submit a petition, please also send a courtesy copy to our attorney, Patrick 
Johnson, at the below contact information: 
 


Patrick Johnson, Assistant Regional Counsel 
Office of Regional Counsel 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 10 
Alaska Operations Office 
222 West 7th Avenue, #19 
Anchorage, Alaska  99513-7588 
johnson.patrick@epa.gov  


 
Our Consolidated Rules of Practice at, 40 C.F.R. § 22.45(c)(4), also require that you provide a copy of 
your petition to the City at the below contact information: 
 


Patricia Phillips, Mayor 
City of Pelican, Alaska 
P.O. Box 737  
Pelican, Alaska  99832 
MayorPhillips@pelicancity.org 


Lattieca Stewart, City Clerk 
City of Pelican, Alaska 
P.O. Box 737 
Pelican, Alaska  99832 
cityclerk@pelicancity.org 


 
In accordance with, 40 C.F.R. § 22.45(c)(4), please do not send any such petition to the Regional 
Hearing Clerk for EPA Region 10. 



mailto:pirzadeh.michelle@epa.gov

mailto:johnson.patrick@epa.gov

mailto:MayorPhillips@pelicancity.org

mailto:cityclerk@pelicancity.org
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Thank you again for your comments.  Regardless of whether you file a petition, please note that your 
comments were considered and are included in this matter’s administrative record.  If you have any 
questions, you may contact Rick Cool, of my staff, at (206) 553-6223 or at cool.richard@epa.gov.  For 
any legal questions, you may contact Patrick Johnson, in the Office of Regional Counsel, at (907) 271-
3914 or johnson.patrick@epa.gov.  
 
       Sincerely, 
 
 
 


Edward J. Kowalski 
Director 


 
 
Enclosures 
 



mailto:cool.richard@epa.gov

mailto:johnson.patrick@epa.gov
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
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CITY OF PELICAN



Pelican, Alaska
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		DOCKET NO. CWA-10-2022-0031



CONSENT AGREEMENT 







Proceedings Under Section 309(g) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)







STATUTORY AUTHORITY

1.1. This Consent Agreement is entered into under the authority vested in the Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) by Section 309(g) of the Clean Water Act (CWA), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g).

1.2. Pursuant to CWA Section 309(g)(1)(A), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(1)(A), EPA is authorized to assess a civil penalty against any person that has violated CWA Section 301, 33 U.S.C. § 1311, and/or any permit condition or limitation in a permit issued under CWA Section 402, 33 U.S.C. § 1342.

1.3. CWA Section 309(g)(2)(B), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(2)(B), authorizes the administrative assessment of Class II civil penalties in an amount not to exceed $10,000 per day for each day during which the violation continues, up to a maximum penalty of $125,000. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Part 19, the administrative assessment of Class II civil penalties may not exceed $22,584 per day for each day during which the violation continues, up to a maximum penalty of $282,293.  See also 85 Fed. Reg. 83820 (December 23, 2020) (2021 Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule).

1.4. Pursuant to CWA Section 309(g)(1)(A) and (g)(2)(B), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(1)(A) and (g)(2)(B), and in accordance with Section 22.18 of the “Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties,” 40 C.F.R. Part 22, EPA issues, and the City of Pelican, Alaska (Respondent) agrees to issuance of, the Final Order attached to this Consent Agreement.

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

2.1. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b), execution of this Consent Agreement commences this proceeding, which will conclude when the Final Order becomes effective.

2.2. The Administrator has delegated the authority to sign consent agreements between EPA and the party against whom a penalty is proposed to be assessed pursuant to CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), to the Regional Administrator of EPA Region 10, who has redelegated this authority to the Director of the Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division, EPA Region 10 (“Complainant”).

2.3. Part III of this Consent Agreement contains a concise statement of the factual and legal basis for the alleged violations of the CWA, together with the specific provisions of the CWA and implementing regulations that Respondent is alleged to have violated.

ALLEGATIONS

Statutory and Regulatory Framework

3.1. As provided in CWA Section 101(a), 33 U.S.C. § 1251(a), the objective of the CWA is “to restore and maintain the chemical, physical, and biological integrity of the Nation’s waters.” 

3.2. CWA Section 301(a), 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), prohibits the discharge of pollutants by any person from any point source into waters of the United States except, inter alia, as authorized by a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit issued pursuant to CWA Section 402, 33 U.S.C. § 1342.

3.3. CWA Section 502(12), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12), defines “discharge of a pollutant” to include “any addition of any pollutant to navigable waters from any point source.”

3.4. CWA Section 502(6), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(6), defines a “pollutant” to include, inter alia, dredged spoil, rock, sand, chemical wastes, and industrial wastes.

3.5. [bookmark: _Hlk68696325]CWA Section 502(14), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14), defines “point source” to mean any discernible, confined and discrete conveyance, including but not limited to any pipe, ditch, channel, tunnel or conduit from which pollutants are or may be discharged.

3.6. CWA Section 502(5), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5), defines “person” as “an individual, corporation, partnership, association, State, municipality, commission, or political subdivision of a State or any interstate body.”

3.7. CWA Section 502(7), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7), defines navigable waters as “waters of the United States.  In turn, “waters of the United States” is defined to include, inter alia, all waters which are currently used, were used in the past, or may be susceptible to use in interstate or foreign commerce, including all waters which are subject to the ebb and flow of the tide; tributaries to such waters; and wetlands adjacent to the foregoing waters.  40 C.F.R. § 120.2 (June 22, 2020); 40 C.F.R. § 122.2 (1993).

3.8. CWA Section 402(a), 33 U.S.C. § 1342(a), provides that the Administrator of EPA may issue permits under the NPDES program for the discharge of any pollutant into the waters of the United States upon such specific terms and conditions as the Administrator may prescribe.

General Allegations

3.9. [bookmark: _Hlk68704640]Respondent is a municipality and is therefore a “person” under CWA Section 502(5), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5).

3.10. At all times relevant to this action, Respondent owned and/or operated the City of Pelican Wastewater Treatment Facility (the “Facility”) at 159 Breakwater Road in Pelican, Alaska.

3.11. [bookmark: _Hlk68705646][bookmark: _Hlk68705029]On September 27, 1985, EPA issued NPDES Permit No. AK-004353-2, which became effective on October 28, 1985, expired on October 28, 1990, and was administratively extended pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 122.6 (the “Permit”).  The Permit authorizes, subject to its terms and conditions, the discharge of municipal wastewater containing pollutants.  

3.12. At all times relevant to this action, Respondent was authorized to discharge wastewater containing pollutants from the Facility pursuant to the Permit.

3.13. On June 7, 2017, an authorized representative of EPA conducted a compliance inspection of the Facility to determine Respondent’s compliance with the Permit and CWA Sections 301 and 402, 33 U.S.C. § 1311 and 1342.

3.14. On December 16, 2020, EPA issued an Information Request to Respondent pursuant to CWA Section 308, 33 U.S.C. § 1318.  Respondent provided its response to that Information Request in March 2021.

3.15. At all times relevant to this action, the Facility discharged pollutants from an outfall which discharges into Lisianski Inlet.  The outfall is a “point source” under CWA Section 502(14), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14).

3.16. The Lisianski Inlet is subject to the ebb and flow of the tide and is a “navigable water” under CWA Section 502(7), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7). Accordingly, Lisianksi Inlet is a “water of the United States” within the meaning of 40 C.F.R. § 120.2 (June 22, 2020) and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2 (1993).

3.17. Respondent has discharged pollutants from a point source into waters of the United States at the Facility, within the meaning of CWA Section 502(7), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7).

Violations

3.18. [bookmark: _Hlk69149322]As described below, from February 2017 to March 2021, Respondent violated CWA Section 301, 33 U.S.C. § 1311, and the conditions and/or limitations of its Permit.  

[bookmark: _Hlk68705214]Count 1: Biochemical Oxygen Demand Effluent Exceedances

3.19. [bookmark: _Hlk68705089]Part I.A.1.d of the Permit requires Respondent to comply with a Biochemical Oxygen Demand (5 day) (BOD5) monthly average effluent limitation of 190 milligrams per liter (mg/l) discharged from the Facility.  

3.20. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part I.A.1.d of the Permit by exceeding the BOD5 monthly average effluent limitation 334 times at the Facility from September 2017 until May 2020.  Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C.        § 1319(g).

Count 2: Failure to Monitor Fecal Coliform Bacteria

3.21. Part I.A.2.a and Part I.A.2.e of the Permit require Respondent to monitor fecal coliform bacteria discharged from the Facility three times per year, once during each of the months of April, June, and August.  

3.22. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part I.A.2.a and Part I.A.2.e of the Permit by failing to monitor fecal coliform bacteria discharged from the Facility in six months between April 2017 and August 2018.  Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g).

Count 3: Failure to Report Sludge Depth of Septic Tank

3.23. Part I.A.2.i of the Permit requires Respondent to measure and report as part of the discharge monitoring reports the sludge depth in the septic tank at the Facility at a minimum frequency of once every four months.  

3.24. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part I.A.2.i of the Permit by failing to report as part of the discharge monitoring reports the sludge depth in the septic tank at the Facility in five months between August 2017 and December 2020.  Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g).

Count 4: Failure to Report Noncompliance

3.25. Part II.J of the Permit requires Respondent to report instances of noncompliance with the Permit at the time that monitoring reports are submitted for the Facility. 

3.26. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part II.J of the Permit by failing to report noncompliance in monitoring reports submitted in sixteen months between August 2017 – December 2020.  Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g).

Count 5: Failure to Maintain Septic Tank Valves

3.27. Part III.E of the Permit requires Respondent to properly operate and maintain all facilities and systems of the treatment and control (and related appurtenances) which are installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of the Facility’s Permit.  

3.28. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part III.E of the Permit by failing to properly maintain septic tank valves from February 2017 – March 2021 at the Facility.  Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g).

Count 6: Failure to Maintain Proper Condition of Septic Tank Coating and Insulation

3.29. Part III.E of the Permit requires Respondent to properly operate and maintain all facilities and systems of the treatment and control (and related appurtenances) which are installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of the Facility’s Permit.  

3.30. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part III.E of the Permit by failing to properly maintain septic tank insulation and waterproof coating from February 2017 – March 2021 at the Facility.  Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g).

Count 7: Failure to Maintain Outfall

3.31. Part III.E of the Permit requires Respondent to properly operate and maintain all facilities and systems of the treatment and control (and related appurtenances) which are installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of the Facility’s Permit.  

3.32. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part III.E of the Permit by failing to properly maintain the outfall, resulting in a clog in June 2020 at the Facility.  Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g).

Count 8: Failure to Use Standard Sludge Depth Measuring Method

3.33. Part III.E of the Permit requires Respondent to properly operate and maintain all facilities and systems of the treatment and control (and related appurtenances) which are installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of the Facility’s Permit.  

3.34. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part III.E of the Permit by failing to properly use a standard method of sludge depth monitoring from February 2017 – March 2021 at the Facility.  Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C.       § 1319(g).

Count 9: Failure to Comply with the Permit

3.35. Part III.A. of the Permit requires that the permittee comply with all conditions of this Permit and that any Permit noncompliance constitutes a violation of the CWA.

3.36. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part III.A of the Permit by failing to comply with all conditions of the Permit from February 2017 – March 2021.  Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g).

Count 10: Failure to Mitigate Discharges

3.37. Part III.D of the Permit requires Respondent to take all reasonable steps to minimize or prevent any discharge in violation of the Permit which has a reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting human health or the environment. 

3.38. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part III.D of the Permit by failing to perform routine operation and maintenance from February 2017 – March 2021 at the Facility resulting in discharges that had a reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting human health or the environment.  Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g).

TERMS OF SETTLEMENT

4.1. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations contained in this Consent Agreement.  

4.2. Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific factual allegations contained in this Consent Agreement.

4.3. As required by CWA Section 309(g)(3), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(3), EPA has taken into account “the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity of the violation, or violations, and, with respect to the violator, ability to pay, any prior history of such violations, the degree of culpability, economic benefit or savings (if any) resulting from the violation, and such other matters as justice may require.”  After considering all of these factors as they apply to this case, EPA has determined that an appropriate penalty to settle this action is $12,000.

4.4. Respondent consents to the assessment of the civil penalty set forth in Paragraph 4.3 and agrees to pay the total civil penalty within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the Final Order.

4.5. Payment under this Consent Agreement and the Final Order may be paid by check (mail or overnight delivery), wire transfer, ACH, or online payment.  Payment instructions are available at: http://www2.epa.gov/financial/makepayment.  Payments made by a cashier’s check or certified check must be payable to the order of “Treasurer, United States of America” and delivered to the following address:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

P.O. Box 979077

St. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000



Respondent must note on the check the title and docket number of this action.

4.6. Respondent must serve photocopies of the check, or proof of other payment method described in Paragraph 4.5, on the Regional Hearing Clerk and EPA Region 10 Compliance Officer at the following addresses:

Regional Hearing Clerk			Rick Cool, Compliance Officer

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency	U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Region 10, Mail Stop 11-C07			Region 10, Mail Stop 20-C04

1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 155			1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 155

Seattle, Washington 98101 			Seattle, Washington 98101

R10_RHC@epa.gov				cool.richard@epa.gov 



4.7. If Respondent fails to pay the penalty assessed by this Consent Agreement in full by its due date, the entire unpaid balance of penalty and accrued interest shall become immediately due and owing.  Such failure may also subject Respondent to a civil action to collect the assessed penalty under the CWA, together with interest, fees, costs, and additional penalties described below.  In any collection action, the validity, amount, and appropriateness of the penalty shall not be subject to review.

a. Interest.  Pursuant to CWA Section 309(g)(9), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(9), any unpaid portion of the assessed penalty shall bear interest at a rate established by the Secretary of Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717(a)(1) from the effective date of the Final Order set forth in Part V, provided however, that no interest shall be payable on any portion of the assessed penalty that is paid within 30 days of the effective date of the Final Order.

b. Attorneys Fees, Collection Costs, Nonpayment Penalty.  Pursuant to CWA Section 309(g)(9), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(9), if Respondent fails to pay on a timely basis the penalty set forth in Paragraph 4.3, Respondent shall pay (in addition to any assessed penalty and interest) attorneys fees and costs for collection proceedings and a quarterly nonpayment penalty for each quarter during which such failure to pay persists.  Such nonpayment penalty shall be in an amount equal to 20% of the aggregate amount of Respondent’s penalties and nonpayment penalties which are unpaid as of the beginning of such quarter.  

4.8. The penalty described in Paragraph 4.3, including any additional costs incurred under Paragraph 4.7, above, represents an administrative civil penalty assessed by EPA and shall not be deductible for purposes of federal taxes.

4.9. The undersigned representative of Respondent certifies that he or she is authorized to enter into the terms and conditions of this Consent Agreement and to bind Respondent to this document.

4.10. The undersigned representative of Respondent also certifies that, as of the date of Respondent’s signature of this Consent Agreement, Respondent has corrected the violation(s) alleged in Part III above other than those alleged violations that will be corrected in accordance with Administrative Compliance Order on Consent, Docket Number: CWA-10-2021-0148.

4.11. Except as described in Subparagraph 4.7.b., above, each party shall bear its own costs in bringing or defending this action.

4.12. For the purposes of this proceeding, Respondent expressly waives any affirmative defenses and the right to contest the allegations contained in the Consent Agreement and to appeal the Final Order.

4.13. The provisions of this Consent Agreement and the Final Order shall bind Respondent and its agents, servants, employees, successors, and assigns.

4.14. The above provisions are STIPULATED AND AGREED upon by Respondent and EPA Region 10.

DATED:	FOR RESPONDENT:





			

PATRICIA PHILLIPS

Mayor

City of Pelican, Alaska





DATED:	FOR COMPLAINANT:





			

EDWARD J. KOWALSKI

Director

Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division
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BEFORE THE

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY





		In the Matter of:



CITY OF PELICAN



Pelican, Alaska



Respondent.



		DOCKET NO. CWA-10-2022-0031



FINAL ORDER 







Proceedings Under Section 309(g) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)







1. The Administrator has delegated the authority to issue this Final Order to the Regional Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Region 10, who has in turn delegated this authority to the Regional Judicial Officer in EPA Region 10.

2. The terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement are ratified and incorporated by reference into this Final Order.  Respondent is ordered to comply with the terms of settlement.

3. The Consent Agreement and this Final Order constitute a settlement by EPA of all claims for civil penalties pursuant to the Clean Water Act (CWA) for the violations alleged in Part III of the Consent Agreement.  In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.31(a), nothing in this Final Order shall affect the right of EPA or the United States to pursue appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violations of law.  This Final Order does not waive, extinguish, or otherwise affect Respondent’s obligations to comply with all applicable provisions of the CWA and regulations promulgated or permits issued thereunder.







4. This Final Order shall become effective upon filing.

SO ORDERED this 		 day of 				, 2022.



	

RICHARD MEDNICK

Regional Judicial Officer

EPA Region 10






BEFORE THE 
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 


In the Matter of: 


CITY OF PELICAN 


Pelican, Alaska 


Respondent. 


DOCKET NO. CWA-10-2021-0148 


ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER ON CONSENT 


I. INTRODUCTION 


1.1. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") makes the findings set forth 


in Section IV below and is issuing this Administrative Order on Consent ("Order") to the City of 


Pelican, Alaska ("Respondent") under the authorities in Sections 308 and 309(a) of the Clean 


Water Act ("CWA"), 33 U.S.C. §§ 1318 and 1319(a). 


1.2. This Order is mutually entered into by EPA and Respondent. 


1.3. EPA alleges that Respondent failed to comply with National Pollutant Discharge 


Elimination System (NPDES) Permit No. AK.-004353-2 at the City of Pelican Wastewater 


Treatment Facility, in violation of Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 131 l{a). 


1.4. By entering into this Order, Respondent (1) consents to EPA's authority to issue 


and enforce this Order; (2) neither admits nor denies the factual allegations as set forth in this 


Order; (3) agrees to undertake all actions required by the terms and conditions of this Order; (4) 


consents to be bound by the requirements set forth herein; and ( 5) agrees not to contest the 


authority of EPA to issue or enforce this Order or the validity of any terms or conditions in this 


Order. 







II. STATUTORY AUTHORITY 


2.1. Section 301(a) of the CW A, 33 U.S.C. § 13 ll(a), prohibits the discharge of any 


pollutant by any person except, inter alia, in compliance with an NPDES permit issued pursuant 


to Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342. 


2.2. Section 402(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(a), provides that the Administrator 


of EPA may issue permits under the NPDES program for the discharge of pollutants from point 


sources to navigable waters. Violation of an NPDES permit is a violation of Section 30l(a) of 


the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 131 l(a). 


2.3. Section 309(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(a), provides that whenever EPA 


finds that any person is in violation of any condition or limitation that implements, inter alia, 


Sections 301(a) and 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 131 l(a) and 1342, EPA shall issue an order 


requiring such person to comply with such condition or limitation, and shall specify a time for 


compliance that EPA determines to be reasonable taking into account the seriousness of the 


violation and any good faith efforts to comply with applicable requirements. 


2.4. Section 308(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1318(a), authorizes EPA to require the 


submission of any information required to carry out the objectives of the CW A. 


2.5. The authorities in Sections 308 and 309(a), 33 U.S.C. §§ 1318 and 1319(a), have 


been delegated to the Regional Administrator for EPA Region 10 and have been redelegated to 


the Region 10 Director of the Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division ("Director"). 


III. DEFINITIONS 


3 .1. All terms used, but not defined, in this Order have the meanings provided to them 


in the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq., and the EPA regulations promulgated under the CWA. 


3.2. "Act" or "CWA" means the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq. 
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3 .3. "Day" or "days" means a calendar day or calendar days unless expressly stated to 


be a business day. When computing any period of time under this Order, should the last day fall 


on a Saturday, Sunday, or federal holiday, the period shall run until the end of the next business 


day. 


3.4. "Discharge of a pollutant," as defined in Section 502(12) of the CWA, means 


inter alia, "any addition of any pollutant to navigable waters from any point source." 33 U.S.C. 


§ 1362(12). 


3.5. "Facility" means the City of Pelican Wastewater Treatment Facility located at 159 


Breakwater Road in Pelican, Alaska. 


3.6. "Navigable waters," as defined in Section 502(7) of the CWA, means "the waters 


of the United States, including the territorial seas." 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7). In turn, "waters of the 


United States" is defined to include, inter alia, all waters which are currently used, were used in 


the past, or may be susceptible to use in interstate or foreign commerce, including all waters 


which are subject to the ebb and flow of the tide; tributaries to such waters; and wetlands 


adjacent to the foregoing waters. 40 C.F.R. § 120.2; 40 C.F.R. § 122.2 (1993). 


3.7. "NPDES Permit" and "Permit" mean the permit issued in accordance with the 


National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) pursuant to Section 402 of the CWA, 


33 U.S.C. 1342. In this Order, these terms mean NPDES Permit No. AK-004353-2, issued by 


EPA to Respondent for the City of Pelican, Alaska Wastewater Treatment Facility with the 


effective date of October 28, 1985, expiration date of October 28, 1990, and administratively 


extended pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 122.6. For purposes of Section IV through XII of this Order, 


"Permit" also means any subsequent NPDES permit issued to Respondent for the City of Pelican 


Wastewater Treatment Facility, until such time as this Order is terminated. 


In the Matter of: City of Pelican, Alaska 
Docket Number: CWA-10-2021-0148 
Administrative Order on Consent 
Page 3 of18 


U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 155, 11-C07 


Seattle, Washington 98101 







3.8. "Parties" means the EPA and Respondent. 


3.9. "Person," as defined in Section 502(5) of the CWA, means an "individual, 


corporation, partnership, association, State, municipality, commission, or political subdivision of 


a State, or any interstate body." 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5). 


3.10. "Point source," as defined in Section 502(14) of the CWA, means "any 


discernible, confined and discrete conveyance ... from which pollutants are or may be 


discharged." 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14). 


3.11. "Pollutant," as defined in Section 502(6) of the CWA, means "dredged spoil, 


solid waste, incinerator residue, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, munitions, chemical wastes, 


biological materials, radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand, 


cellar dirt, and industrial, municipal, and agricultural waste discharged into water." 33 U.S.C. 


§ 1362(6). 


IV. FINDINGS OF FACT AND LAW 


4.1. Respondent is a municipality and is therefore a "person" under CW A Section 


502(5), 33 u.s.c. § 1362(5). 


4.2. At all times relevant to this action, Respondent owned and/or operated the City of 


Pelican Wastewater Treatment Facility (the "Facility") at 159 Breakwater Road in Pelican, 


Alaska. 


4.3. At all times relevant to this action, Respondent was authorized to discharge 


wastewater containing pollutants from the Facility outfall pursuant to the Permit into Lisianski 


Inlet. 


4.4. The Facility's outfall is a "point source," as defined in Section 502(14) of the 


CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14). 
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4.5. The Facility's wastewater contains "pollutants," as defined in Section 502(6) of 


the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(6). 


4.6. Lisianski Inlet is subject to the ebb and flow of the tide and is a "navigable water" 


under CWA Section 502(7), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7). Accordingly, Lisianksi Inlet is a "water of the 


United States" within the meaning of 40 C.F.R. § 120.2 and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2 (1993). 


4.7. The discharge described in Paragraph 4.3 is a "discharge of pollutants," as defined 


in Section 502(12) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12). 


4.8. Because Respondent owned and operated a facility that discharged pollutants 


from a point source into navigable waters, Respondent and the Facility have been subject to the 


CW A and the NPDES program at all times relevant to this Order. Thus, any such discharge has 


been and is subject to the specific terms and conditions prescribed in the applicable permit and 


applicable state and federal regulations. 


4.9. As described below, from September 2016 to March 2021, Respondent violated 


CWA Section 301, 33 U.S.C.§1311, and the conditions and/or limitations of its Permit. 


Count 1: Biochemical Oxygen Demand Effluent Exceedances 


4.10. Part I.A.1.d of the Permit requires Respondent to comply with a Biochemical 


Oxygen Demand (5 day) (BODs) monthly average effluent limitation of 190 milligrams per liter 


(mg/1) discharged from the Facility. 


4.11. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part I.A. l .d of the Permit by exceeding the 


BODs monthly average effluent limitation 334 times at the Facility from September 2017 until 


May 2020. Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. 


§ 1319(g). 
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Count 2: Failure to Monitor Fecal Coliform Bacteria 


4.12. Part I.A.2.a and Part I.A.2.e of the Permit require Respondent to monitor fecal 


coliform bacteria discharged from the Facility three times per year, once during each of the 


months of April, June, and August. 


4.13. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part I.A.2.a and Part I.A.2.e of the Permit 


by failing to monitor fecal coliform bacteria discharged from the Facility in six Permit­


designated months between April 2017 and August 2018. Violations of the Permit are 


enforceable under CW A Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. § 13 l 9(g). 


Count 3: Failure to Report Sludge Depth of Septic Tank 


4.14. Part I.A.2.i of the Permit requires Respondent to measure and report as part of the 


discharge monitoring reports the sludge depth in the septic tank at the Facility at a minimum 


frequency of once every four months. 


4.15. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part I.A.2.i of the Permit by failing to 


report as part of the discharge monitoring reports the sludge depth in the septic tank at the 


Facility in six months between December 2016 and December 2020. Violations of the Permit 


are enforceable under CW A Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g). 


Count 4: Failure to Report Noncompliance 


4.16. Part II.J of the Permit requires Respondent to report instances of noncompliance 


with the Permit at the time that monitoring reports are submitted for the Facility. 


4.17. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part II.J of the Permit by failing to report 


noncompliance in monitoring reports submitted in sixteen months between December 2016 -


December 2020. Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. 


§ 1319(g). 
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Count 5: Failure to Maintain Septic Tank Valves 


4.18. Part III.E of the Permit requires Respondent to properly operate and maintain all 


facilities and systems of the treatment and control (and related appurtenances) which are 


installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of the Facility's 


Permit. 


4.19. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part III.E of the Permit by failing to 


properly maintain septic tank valves from September 2016 - March 2021 at the Facility. 


Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g). 


Count 6: Failure to Maintain Proper Condition of Septic Tank Coating and Insulation 


4.20. Part III.E of the Permit requires Respondent to properly operate and maintain all 


facilities and systems of the treatment and control ( and related appurtenances) which are 


installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of the Facility's 


Permit. 


4.21. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part III.E of the Permit by failing to 


properly maintain septic tank insulation and waterproof coating from September 2016 - March 


2021 at the Facility. Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CW A Section 309(g), 33 


U .S.C. § 1319(g). 


Count 7: Failure to Maintain Outfall 


4.22. Part III.E of the Permit requires Respondent to properly operate and maintain all 


facilities and systems of the treatment and control (and related appurtenances) which are 


installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of the Facility's 


Permit. 
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4.23. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part III.E of the Permit by failing to 


properly maintain the outfall, resulting in a clog in June 2020 at the Facility. Violations of the 


Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g). 


Count 8: Failure to Use Standard Sludge Depth Measuring Method 


4.24. Part III.E of the Permit requires Respondent to properly operate and maintain all 


facilities and systems of the treatment and control (and related appurtenances) which are 


installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of the Facility's 


Permit. 


4.25. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part III.E of the Permit by failing to 


properly use a standard method of sludge depth monitoring from September 2016 - March 2021 


at the Facility. Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. 


§ 1319(g). 


Count 9: Failure to Comply with the Permit 


4.26. Part III.A. of the Permit requires that the permittee comply with all conditions of 


this Permit and that any Permit noncompliance constitutes a violation of the CWA. 


4.27. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part III.A of the Permit by failing to 


comply with all conditions of the Permit from September 2016 - March 2021. Violations of the 


Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g). 


Count 10: Failure to Mitigate Discharges 


4.28. Part III.D of the Permit requires Respondent to take all reasonable steps to 


minimize or prevent any discharge in violation of the Permit which has a reasonable likelihood 


of adversely affecting human health or the environment. 
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4.29. EPA alleges that Respondent violated Part III.D of the Permit by failing to 


perform routine operation and maintenance from September 2016 - March 2021 at the Facility 


resulting in discharges that had a reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting human health or 


the environment. Violations of the Permit are enforceable under CWA Section 309(g), 33 


U.S.C. § 1319(g). 


4.30. Respondent is a person who discharged pollutant(s) from point source(s) into 


navigable waters, in violation of its Permit. Each violation of the conditions of the Permit or 


regulations described above is a violation of Section 301 of the CW A, 33 U .S.C. § 1311. 


4.31. Taking into account the seriousness of these violations and any good faith efforts 


to comply with applicable requirements, the parties acknowledge and agree that the schedule for 


compliance contained in Section V of this Consent Order is reasonable and appropriate. 


V. COMPLIANCE MEASURES 


Based upon the foregoing findings and the authority granted to the undersigned Director, 


it is hereby ordered and agreed to in accordance with Sections 308 and 309(a) of the CWA, 33 


U.S.C. §§ 1318 and 1319(a), that Respondent comply with the following actions: 


5.1 Facility Operations & Maintenance Manual. On or before June 1, 2022, 


Respondent shall submit a full and complete Facility Operations and Maintenance Manual 


(O&M Manual) to EPA. The main purpose of this O&M Manual is to give the Facility operators 


the proper understanding, techniques, procedures, routine operations tasks, and preventative 


maintenance and inspection tasks necessary to operate the Facility efficiently and effectively to 


help maintain a high Facility performance record and to comply with all Permit terms and 


conditions. The O&M Manual's intended audience is primarily the Facility operators. The 


O&M Manual shall address in detail the following items at minimum: 
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5.1.1 Overall maintenance of operating conditions of the Facility, including the four 


septic tanks (including insulation and protective coatings), piping, valves, and 


outfall line to Lisianski Inlet; 


5 .1.2 Permit Part I.A. effluent sampling and monitoring procedures, including, but 


not limited to, the Fecal Coliform Bacteria monitoring required by Permit Part 


I.A.2.e at least three times per year, once during each of the months of April, 


June and August; 


5.1.3 Facility septic tank sludge depth monitoring at a minimum frequency of once 


every four (4) months and sludge removal and disposal required in accordance 


with the Part I.A.2.i of the Permit and the procedures developed under 


Paragraph 5.2 of this Order; 


5.1.4 Maintenance procedures and related schedules and frequencies for all Facility 


components; 


5.1.5 A description of a Facility maintenance record system; 


5.1.6 Costs and budgeting for Facility maintenance, including sludge pumping and 


disposal; 


5 .1. 7 Facility-based laboratory testing and sampling procedures and supplies; 


5.1.8 Procedures and schedules for tank cleaning and sludge removal and disposal; 


5.1.9 Procedures and schedules of periodic cleaning (e.g.,jetting) of the Facility 


outfall piping system to prevent reduced flow capacity, clogging, and 


plugging; and 
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5 .1.10 Procedures for Permit-required Discharge Monitor Report preparation and 


submission and hazard identification and discussion, if applicable, of U.S. 


Occupational Safety and Health Administration confined space requirements. 


5.2 Facility Septic Tank Sludge Depth Monitoring, Removal and Disposal. On or 


before June 1, 2022, Respondent shall submit to EPA a detailed set of Facility procedures, 


including schedules and frequencies, to address sludge depth monitoring in the four septic tanks 


and to provide for accurate determinations of sludge depth levels triggering sludge removal and 


proper disposal to ensure Permit effluent limitation compliance. This detailed set of Facility 


procedures shall be inserted and incorporated into the O&M Manual required by Paragraph 5.1 


of this Order. These Facility procedures shall address in detail the following items at a 


mm1mum: 


5.2.1 Use of a wastewater treatment industry-based standard sludge level 


monitoring device (that can also sample sludge) that provides accuracy and 


reproducibility of accurate sludge depth level measurements; 


5.2.2 Identification of target tank sludge depth levels and related tank sludge 


volumes and quantities and related percentage solids(% solids) on a tank-by­


tank basis in all or any of the Facility ' s four septic tanks that will trigger tank 


sludge removal and proper disposal; 


5.2.3 Detailed computation methods (or use of identified on-line calculators) for 


calculating the septic tank sludge volumes and quantities; and 


5.2.4 Sludge depth level monitoring and record keeping procedures to ensure 


compliance with Part I.A.2.i of the Permit, including the submission of 
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recorded sludge depth levels with the Facility's routine submission of DMRs 


to EPA. 


5.3 Facility Septic Tank Repair. On or before September 1, 2023, Respondent shall 


complete all repairs and replacements on all four Facility septic tanks to address any remaining 


inoperable isolation valves on any of the tanks as of the effective date of this Order, and repair 


and replace any damaged or degraded tank insulation and protective coating as those damaged 


and degraded insulation and protective coating conditions are described in Respondent's 


consulting report captioned City of Pelican Septic Tank Sludge Management Conceptual Design 


Report (DRAFT) prepared by HDR Alaska, Inc. (March 2011 ), Parts 4.1 and 5 .1., and any other 


Facility-related repairs to the tanks, piping, valves, and other Facility appurtenances that have 


been subsequently identified by Respondent since receipt of the March 2011 HDR report. 


5.4 Facility Septic Tank Repair Planning and Budget. In the April 30, 2022 status report 


required under Paragraph 6.1 of this Order, Respondent shall include a detailed description of all 


Facility repairs and replacements needed to be completed to meet the requirements of Paragraph 


5.3 of this Order; a detailed critical path schedule for completing the repairs and replacements 


including timing of budgets, ordering of equipment, contracting for work, etc. in accordance with 


the completion deadline of September 1, 2023 as required by Paragraph 5.3 of this Order; and an 


estimated total budget for all related repairs and replacements projects. 


VI. DOCUMENTATION AND SUBMISSIONS 


6.1. Respondent shall submit a status report to EPA within thirty (30) days of the end 


of each calendar-year quarter (i.e., by January 31, April 30, July 31, and October 31 ), until this 


Order is terminated. The first status report will be due within thirty (30) days of completion of 


the first full quarter after the effective date of this Order. Each status report must include: (a) a 
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description of the actions that have been taken toward achieving compliance with this Order 


during the previous quarter; (b) an assessment of the effectiveness of such actions in preventing 


Permit violations; (c) a summary of all Permit violations that occurred during the previous 


quarter; and (d) an analysis of the cause of each such Permit violation. 


6.2. All reports, notifications, documentation, submissions, and other correspondence 


required to be submitted by this Order must be submitted to EPA electronically, to the extent 


possible. If electronic submittal is not possible, the submissions must be made by certified mail 


(return receipt requested). Electronic submissions must be sent to the following addresses: 


RlOenforcement(a),epa.gov, cool.richard@epa.gov, and johnson.patrick@epa.gov. The subject 


line of all email correspondence must include the Facility name, Permit No. AK-004353-2, 


subject of the deliverable, and the docket number of this Order. All electronically-submitted 


materials must be in final and searchable format, such as Portable Document Format (PDF) with 


Optical Character Recognition (OCR) applied. Mailed submissions must be sent to the following 


addresses: 


Attn: Rick Cool 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Region 10, Mail Stop 20-C04 
1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 155 
Seattle, Washington 98101 


Attn: Patrick Johnson 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Region 10, Alaska Operations Office 
222 West Seventh Avenue, No. 19 
Anchorage, Alaska 99513 


6.3. All reports, notifications, documentation, and submissions required by this Order 


must be signed by a duly authorized representative of Respondent as specified by 40 C.F .R. 


§ 122.22(b) and (d) and must include the following statement: 


"I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared 
under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that 
qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my 
inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly 
responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my 
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knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant 
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and 
imprisonment for knowing violations." 


6.4. Respondent may not withhold information based on a claim that it is confidential. 


However, pursuant to 40 C.F .R. Part 2, Subpart B, Respondent may assert a claim of business 


confidentiality regarding any portion of the information submitted in response to this Order. The 


manner of asserting such claims is specified in 40 C.F .R. § 2.203(b ). Certain information related 


to effluent data (as defined in 40 C.F.R. § 2.302(a)(2)) and NPDES permit applications may not 


be entitled to confidential treatment. 40 C.F.R. § 122.7. Information subject to a business 


confidentiality claim is available to the public only to the extent, and by means of the procedures, 


set forth in 40 C.F .R. Part 2, Subpart B. If Respondent does not assert a claim of business 


confidentiality when it submits the information, EPA may make the information available to the 


public without further notice. 40 C.F.R. § 2.203(c). 


6.5. If Respondent finds at any time after submitting information that any portion of 


that information is false or incorrect, the signatory must notify EPA immediately. Knowingly 


submitting false information to EPA in response to this Order may subject Respondent to 


criminal prosecution under Section 309(c) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(c), as well as 18 


U.S.C. § 1001 and 1341. 


6.6. Submissions by Respondent are incorporated and enforceable as part of this 


Order. In case of inconsistency between any submission by Respondent and this Order and its 


subsequent modifications, this Order and its subsequent modifications shall control. 


6. 7. EPA may use any information submitted in response to this Order in support of an 


administrative, civil, or criminal action against Respondent. 


6.8. The information required to be submitted pursuant to this Order is not subject to 


the approval requirements of the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, 44 U.S.C. § 3501 et seq. 
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6.9. Respondent shall preserve and retain, and shall instruct its consultant, contractor, 


and other persons acting on their behalf in connection with this Order, to preserve and retain all 


records and documents relating in any manner to this Order until EPA has issued a written notice 


pursuant to Paragraph 12.3. IfEPA asks Respondent for any copies of any records or documents 


related to the activities conducted pursuant to this Order, Respondent shall, at no cost to EPA, 


provide EPA the original or copies of the records or documents within thirty (30) days ofEPA' s 


request. 
VII. GENERAL PROVISIONS 


7 .1. Respondent has had the opportunity to confer with and submit information to 


EPA concerning the validity and provisions of this Order. 


7 .2. This Order does not affect Respondent's responsibility to comply with the CW A, 


its Permit, and other local, state, and federal laws and regulations. 


7 .3. The undersigned signatory for each party has the authority to bind each respective 


party to the terms and conditions of this Order. 


7.4. Respondent agrees to accept service of the Order by electronic mail to 


publicworks@pelicancity.org. 


7 .5. This Order shall be binding on Respondent and their agents, employees, 


successors, and assigns, and on all persons, contractors, and consultants acting in concert with or 


under the direction of Respondent or of this Order. 


7.6. Respondent shall provide a copy of this Order to all contractors and/or consultants 


retained to perform any of the work described in this Order at least 48 hours prior to the initiation 


of such work. 
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7.7. Until such time as all tasks required under this Order are completed, Respondent 


shall provide a copy of this Order to any successor in ownership, control, or operation in all or 


any portion of the real property at issue at least thirty (30) days prior to the transfer and shall 


simultaneously notify EPA in writing that such notice has been given. No transfer or contract 


shall in any way affect Respondent's obligation to comply fully with all the terms and conditions 


of this Order. 


7.8. This Order does not restrict EPA' s authority to enforce the Permit or any section 


of the CWA or its implementing regulations. 


7.9. For purposes of the identification requirement of Section 162(t)(2)(A)(ii) of the 


Internal Revenue Code, 26 U .S.C. § 162(f)(2)(A)(ii), and 26 C.F .R. § 162-21 (b )(2), performance 


of Sections V and VI is restitution, remediation, or required to come into compliance with law. 


VIII. SANCTIONS 


8.1. Failure to comply with the terms of this Order may subject Respondent to civil 


penalties under Section 309(d), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(d), as modified by 40 C.F.R. Part 19. Should 


EPA commence an action seeking penalties for violations of this Order, a United States district 


court has the authority, after notice and opportunity for a hearing, to impose separate civil 


penalties for violation of the CW A as well as for violation of this Order. 


IX. MODIFICATION OF ORDER 


9 .1. The deadlines set forth in this Order may be modified upon written approval by 


EPA. Any other modification of this Order shall be by agreement of all Parties and in writing 


and shall not take effect until the written agreement is signed by all Parties. 
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X. JUDICIAL REVIEW 


10.1. Respondent waives any and all remedies, claims for relief, and otherwise 


available rights to judicial or administrative review that Respondent may have with respect to 


any issue of fact or law set forth in this Order, including, but not limited to, any right of judicial 


review of this Order under the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. §§ 701-708. 


XI. EFFECTIVE DATE 


11.1. This Order shall become effective upon receipt by Respondent and will remain in 


effect until Respondent has demonstrated compliance and EPA has notified Respondent pursuant 


to Section XII, below. 


XII. FINAL REPORT AND TERMINATION 


12.1. EPA may terminate this Order at any time by written notice to Respondent. 


12.2. Absent the notice described in Paragraph 12.1 and within thirty (30) days after 


Respondent concludes that it has complied with all requirements of this Order, Respondent shall 


submit to the EPA a written final report and certification of completion describing all actions 


taken to comply with all requirements of this Order. Respondent must follow the procedures set 


forth in Section VI of this Order. 


12.3. After receipt and review of Respondent's final report and certification of 


completion submitted pursuant to Paragraph 12.2, EPA will notify Respondent whether it has 


satisfied all requirements of this Order under the procedures set forth in Section VI of this Order. 


IfEPA concludes that Respondent has failed to satisfy the requirements of this Order, EPA may 


require further actions as set forth under this Order or it may pursue administrative or civil 


judicial actions. 
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STIPULATED and AGREED this .2..±h._ day of VIA.. / 
T


, 2021: 


Patricia Phillips, Mayor 
City of Pelican, Alaska 


It is so ORDERED and AGREED this __ day of ____ , 2021: 


Edward J. Kowalski. Director 
Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division 
EPA Region 10 
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